# CONTRACT FOR PROVISION OF SERVICES OUTSIDE AUSTRALIA

CONTRACT NO: 4600008330

# **DETAILS SCHEDULE**

# **PARTIES**

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA represented by the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade ABN 47 065 634 525 the Embassy of Australia, Washington DC ("DFAT")

DFAT Representative:	s 22(1)(a	a)(ii)
Notice Details:	Address:	1601 Massachusetts Ave, Washington, DC 20036
	Email:	s 22(1)(a)(ii)@dfat.gov.au

# THE TRUSTEE FOR AGENCY PROJECTS TRUST (CONTRACTOR)

Contractor Representative:	Kade McD	cDonald, CEO		
Notice Details:	Address:	Collingwood Yards Unit 102 / 35 Johnston Street Collingwood VIC 3066		
	Email:	s 47F(1)		

#### **INFORMATION TABLE**

Item	Information			
Item 1	Services:	Provision of Artworks for the new Australian Embassy Project in Washington DC, USA.		
Item 2 (clause 1)	Term:	Effective Date:		14 June 2022
		Commencement Date:		31 May 2022
		Expiry Date:		31 August 2023
		Extension Option/s:		Nil
Item 3 (clause 4.1a)	Service Requireme	equirements: As per		achment 1 – Service Requirements
Item 4 (clause 4.1b)	Location of Service	vices: 1601 Massachusetts Ave NW Washington, DC 20036		

Item 5 (clause 4.1a)	Timing for Delivery of Services	As per Attachment 1 - Service Requirements		
Items 6 (clause 4.1b)	Personnel to be used in the Provision of the Services:	Not applicable		
Item 7 (clause 8.1)	Contract Price:	The total Contract Price will be AUD 808,767. Refer to Attachment 2 - Pricing Schedule for further details of the Contract Price and detail of payment.		
Item 8 (clause 11.1)	Reimbursable Expenses:	Refer to Pricing	Schedule	
Item 9 (clause 20.1)	Contractor Insurance Requirements:	Public liability insurance	Yes Equivalent to AUD10 million each and every public liability occurrence.	
		Professional indemnity insurance	Yes  Adequate professional indemnity insurance to cover the Contractor's obligations under this Contract. Such insurance must be maintained for 7 years following the date on which the Contract expires (or any earlier termination).	
Item 10 (clause 1)	Governing Law:	Australian Capital	Territory	
Item 11 (clause 23)	Confidential Information:	As per clause 23		

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Pa	age
1.	TERM	1
2.	SERVICES	1
3.	CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	1
4.	PROVISION OF SERVICES	1
5.	REPLACEMENT SERVICES	1
6.	NATURE OF ENGAGEMENT	1
7.	REMOVAL OF CONTRACTOR'S PERSONNEL	2
8.	PRICE BASIS	2
9.	PAYMENT	2
10.	INVOICE	.2
11.	REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES	.3
13.	WARRANTY	.3
14.	USE OF DFAT ITEMS	.3
15.	INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS	.4
16.	INDIGENOUS CULTURAL AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY (ICIP)	.4
17.	TERMINATION FOR BREACH	.4
18.	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE	.5
19.	SECURITY	.5
20.	WORK HEALTH AND SAFETY	.5
21.	INSURANCE	.5
22.	INDEMNITY	.6
23.	PRIVACY	6
24.	CONFIDENTIALITY	6
25.	CONFLICT OF INTEREST	7
26.	NOTICES	7
27.	ASSIGNMENT	7
28.	SUBCONTRACTING	7

29.	APPROVALS AND COMPLIANCE7
30.	DFAT ACCESS8
31.	CHILD PROTECTION POLICY8
32.	PREVENTING SEXUAL EXPLOITATION, ABUSE AND HARASSMENT (PSEAH)8
33.	COUNTER-TERRORISM AND SANCTIONS8
34.	ANTI-CORRUPTION9
35.	FRAUD9
37.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT
41.	GOVERNING LAW
42.	DEFINITIONS
ATT.	ACHMENT 1 – SERVICE REQUIREMENTS11
1.	THE SERVICES
2.	EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS12
3.	ARTWORK REQUIREMENTS12
ATT	ACHMENT 2 – PRICING SCHEDULE

# General Conditions of Contract for the Supply of Services outside Australia

#### 1. TERM

- 1.1 The Contract takes effect on the Effective Date. The Services commence on the Commencement Date and unless terminated earlier in accordance with the Contract or otherwise, end on the Expiry Date or completion of the Services if no Expiry Date is specified.
- 1.2 DFAT may, in its sole discretion, extend the Contract for a further period as specified in Item 2 of the Details Schedule by giving written notice to the Contractor at least 30 days before the end of the then current Term. The Contract, if extended, will continue under the same terms and conditions.

#### 2. SERVICES

2.1 The Contractor agrees to provide the Services to DFAT and DFAT agrees to purchase the Services in accordance with the terms of the Contract.

#### 3. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- 3.1 The Contract between DFAT and the Contractor comprises the General Conditions of Contract for the Supply of Services outside of Australia (including the Details Schedule) and any Attachments.
- 3.2 If there is any ambiguity or inconsistency between the documents comprising the Contract, the following order of precedence is to be given to the extent of any ambiguity or inconsistency:
  - (a) the General Conditions of Contract for the Supply of Services outside Australia (including the Details Schedule); and
  - (b) the Attachments (if any).

#### PROVISION OF SERVICES

- 4.1 The Contractor must provide the Services to DFAT:
  - (a) for the period, at the times and locations (as applicable), and in accordance with any requirements for the provision of the Services as specified in the Details Schedule:
  - (b) using the Personnel identified in the Details Schedule (if any) or otherwise using appropriately qualified, skilled and experienced Personnel;
  - ensure that the Services are provided to a standard of quality not less than industry best practice for services of the same type as those Services and, without limiting clause 4.1a, in a timely manner;
  - (d) to the satisfaction of the DFAT Representative; and
  - (e) in accordance with any other requirements specified in the Contract.
- 4.2 The Contractor must promptly notify DFAT if the Contractor or any of its Personnel becomes aware that the Contractor will be unable to provide all or part of the Services in accordance with the requirements of this clause 4.

# 5. REPLACEMENT SERVICES

5.1 If the Contractor fails to provide the Services in accordance with the Contract, the Contractor must, at its cost, provide replacement Services or take any other action to rectify any aspect of the Services which do not comply with the Contract, as directed by DFAT.

# 6. NATURE OF ENGAGEMENT

6.1 DFAT engages the Contractor to provide the Services as an independent contractor and not as DFAT's agent or employee. The Contractor has no authority to bind DFAT or act on DFAT's behalf at any time. The Contractor is not entitled to any benefit from DFAT usually attributable to an employee. The Contractor must not, and must ensure that its Personnel do not, represent itself or themselves as being DFAT's employees, partners or agents.

#### REMOVAL OF CONTRACTOR'S PERSONNEL

7.1 DFAT, acting reasonably, may give notice requiring the Contractor to remove any Personnel from work in respect of the Services. The Contractor must promptly arrange for their replacement with personnel of appropriate qualifications, skills and experience, as deemed acceptable by DFAT in writing, at no additional cost to DFAT.

#### 8. PRICE BASIS

- 8.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Details Schedule, the Contract Price is fixed for the duration of the Contract. The Contract Price is inclusive of:
  - (a) all taxes, duties and government charges imposed or levied the jurisdiction(s) in which the Services will be, or are, provided;
  - (b) remuneration to the Contractor's Personnel, including salaries, wages, fees, superannuation, annual leave, sick leave, long service leave and all other benefits to which any of them may be entitled under any contract with the Contractor or under any award, statute or local law;
  - (c) costs in respect of procuring and maintaining the insurances required under clause 20; and
  - (d) costs of compliance with all other statutory, award or other legal or contractual requirements with respect to the Contractor's Personnel.

#### 9. PAYMENT

- 9.1 Subject to clause 10 and the Details Schedule, DFAT will pay:
  - (a) the Contract Price to the Contractor within 20 days after receipt of a correctly rendered invoice; or
  - (b) if the Details Schedule provides for the payment of the Contract Price by way of:
    - instalments, the amount of the relevant instalment to the Contractor within 20 days after receipt of a correctly rendered invoice; or
    - (ii) milestone payments, the amount of the relevant milestone payment to the Contractor within 20 days after receipt of a correctly rendered invoice; and
  - (b) if the Details Schedule provides for the reimbursement of Reimbursable Expenses, the amount of those Reimbursable Expenses which have been incurred by the Contractor in accordance with the Contract, within 20 days after receipt of a correctly rendered invoice.
- 9.2 Under this Contract, interest on the late payment of invoices is not applicable.

# 10. INVOICE

- 10.1 An invoice is correctly rendered under clause 9 if:
  - (a) the amount claimed for payment is calculated in accordance with the Contract and the Details Schedule provides that the amount is due for payment;
  - (b) the Services meet the requirements of the Contract; and
  - (c) the invoice:
    - is set out in a manner that enables DFAT to ascertain the Services to which the invoice relates and that part of the Contract Price payable in respect of those Services;
    - (ii) if the Details Schedule provides for the reimbursement of Reimbursable Expenses, the invoice separately itemises all expenses for which reimbursement is being sought. Copies of invoices substantiating the Reimbursable Expenses must be attached to the invoice; and
    - (iii) contains the Contract number, the name and phone number of the Contractor Representative and is addressed as specified in the Details Schedule.

The Contractor must promptly provide to DFAT such supporting documentation and other evidence reasonably required by DFAT to substantiate performance of the Contract by the Contractor or payment of the Contract Price by DFAT.

#### 11. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

- 11.1 Except as provided for in the Details Schedule, the Contractor must perform its obligations under the Contract at its own cost and neither the Contractor nor any of its Personnel will be entitled to be reimbursed for any Reimbursable Expenses incurred in providing the Services.
- 11.2 Where DFAT has provided its prior written consent, the Contractor will be entitled to reimbursement for travel, accommodation and living expenses up to the DFAT Non-SES travelling allowance rates, and for goods and/or services purchased on behalf of DFAT at DFAT's request. All claims for such reimbursement must be submitted on a valid tax invoice showing the tax exclusive price, with tax then being charged on the total amount. The maximum amounts to which the Contractor is entitled to reimbursement under this clause 11 will be the amounts to which DFAT non-SES personnel are entitled to when travelling in Australia or overseas.
- 11.3 If the Contractor is required to travel under the Contract, the hours spent travelling are not billable work hours. Time spent travelling for the purposes of this Contract does not constitute a reimbursable expense.
- 11.4 If requested by the DFAT Representative, the Contractor must provide satisfactory evidence to substantiate any specified claim for reimbursement prior to DFAT making any payment of the related claim.

#### 12. DEDUCTION / SET OFF

- DFAT may deduct from any payment of the whole or part of the Contract Price any taxes, charges, insurance premiums or levies imposed by law upon DFAT which are ordinarily required to be paid by the Contractor as a result of the Contractor providing the Services. In doing so, the Contractor will be the entity that is taken to be complying with legislative requirements and DFAT will not be seen to be treating the Contractor or any of its Personnel as anything other than an independent contractor.
- 12.2 If the Contractor owes any debt to DFAT under or in connection with the Contract, DFAT may deduct the amount of the debt from payment of the Contract Price, or seek to recover the amount as a debt due to DFAT.

### WARRANTY

- 13.1 The Contractor warrants that:
  - (a) the Services will be fit for the purpose or purposes for which services of that kind could be reasonably expected to be applied by DFAT; and
  - (b) the Services will be provided by appropriately qualified, skilled and experienced Personnel.

#### 14. USE OF DEAT ITEMS

- 14.1 The Contractor must not, and must ensure that its Personnel do not, use any DFAT Items for any purpose other than:
  - (a) a purpose for which that DFAT Item was designed, manufactured or constructed; and
  - (b) for the provision of the Services.
- The Contractor must protect all DFAT Items from loss or damage, maintain DFAT Items in good order and promptly return DFAT Items to DFAT upon request by DFAT, when they are no longer required to provide the Services or otherwise upon expiration or termination of the Contract.
- The Contractor acknowledges that it may be provided with the ability to access DFAT-held information in connection with its performance of the Services, including through access to DFAT information technology systems. Without limiting the Contractor's other obligations under this Contract or otherwise at law, the Contractor must not seek to access or use DFAT-held information except to the extent strictly required for the provision of the Services.

#### INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

- 15.1 All Intellectual Property Rights in the Artwork and any material and drafts created as part of producing the Artwork in accordance with the Artist Briefing Document will remain with the Artist.
- The Artist must not, for the duration of the Intellectual Property Rights in the Work, make, cause or permit to be made another work that is identical to the Work.
- 15.3 The Artist grants to the DFAT and the Contractor (and their licensees and successors in title) a permanent, irrevocable, royalty-free, world-wide, non-exclusive license to use, reproduce in whole or in part, adapt and exploit the materials, drafts or images of the Artwork for the purposes of promotion, publicity and critical review.
- 15.4 Upon completion of the Work and at all times whilst the Work is being exhibited to the public, DFAT will, as far as practicable and reasonable in the circumstances, ensure that the Artist is identified as the creator of the Work.
- The work will not be subject to any material alteration, distortion, or mutilation that is prejudiced to the work or the reputation of the Artist, without the Artist's prior consent.
- 15.6 The Artist may name the Work in consultation with DFAT.

#### 16. INDIGENOUS CULTURAL AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY (ICIP)

- DFAT and the Contractor recognise and support the rights of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples to control, own, maintain, protect and develop their ICIP and any Intellectual Property relating to or incorporating their ICIP, in accordance with Article 31 of the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous People.
- DFAT and the Contractor agree to comply with the Project ICIP Protocol, and the Australia Council Protocols for using First Nations Cultural and Intellectual Property in the Arts, in relation to the Project, and acknowledge that ownership of any ICIP incorporated in the Project will remain with the traditional custodians.
- 16.3 Where ICIP is incorporated in the Project or other Intellectual Property displayed on as part of the engagement which may contain any ICIP:
  - (a) The Contractor will notify DAFT of the ICIP and any cultural protocols or restrictions on using and dealing with the ICIP;
  - (b) The Contractor will comply with any such protocols or restrictions;
  - (c) The Contractor will ensure that free, prior informed consent for use of the ICIP in relation to the Project is sought and received by the traditional custodians;
  - (d) The Contractor will ensure that relevant traditional custodians are appropriately attributed for use of their ICIP in relation to the Project and on the Platform; and
  - (e) DFAT and the Contractor will not use the ICIP for any purpose other than as part of the Project, or as contemplated by the license in Clause 10 of this Agreement.
- The parties acknowledge and agree that all rights, title and interest (including Intellectual Property) in any Artwork or Content, is held by the Artist upon creation and subject to any Artist and third party licensing arrangements.

## 17. TERMINATION FOR BREACH

- 17.1 DFAT may terminate the Contract if the Contractor:
  - (a) does not provide, or notifies DFAT that it will be unable to provide, all of the Services for the period, at the times and locations (as applicable), and in accordance with any requirements for the provision of the Services as specified in the Details Schedule;
  - does not provide replacement personnel acceptable to DFAT in accordance with clause 7 (Removal of Contractor Personnel);

- (c) breaches the Contract and the breach is not capable of remedy;
- (d) does not remedy a breach of the Contract which is capable of remedy within the period specified by DFAT in a notice of default issued by DFAT to the Contractor requiring the Contractor to remedy the breach;
- (e) becomes bankrupt or insolvent; or
- (f) breaches any of its obligations under clauses 18 (Security) or 19 (Work Health and Safety).

#### 18. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

- In addition to any other rights it has under the Contract, DFAT may at any time terminate the Contract by notifying the Contractor in writing. If DFAT issues such a notice, the Contractor must stop work in accordance with the notice, comply with any directions given by DFAT and mitigate all loss, costs (including the costs of its compliance with any directions) and expenses in connection with the termination, including those arising from affected subcontracts.
- 18.2 DFAT will only be liable for payments to the Contractor for Services provided to DFAT before the effective date of termination and any reasonable costs incurred by the Contractor that are directly attributable to the termination, if the Contractor substantiates these amounts to the satisfaction of DFAT.
- 18.3 The Contractor will not be entitled to profit anticipated on any part of the Contract terminated.

#### SECURITY

19.1 If DFAT provides the Contractor with access to any DFAT place, area or facility, the Contractor must comply with any security and safety requirements notified to the Contractor by DFAT or of which the Contractor is aware and ensure that its Personnel are aware of and comply with such security requirements.

#### 20. WORK HEALTH AND SAFETY

- 20.1 The Contractor must perform its, and must ensure that its Personnel perform their, obligations under this Contract:
  - (a) in a manner which ensures that DFAT meets its obligations under the Work Health and Safety Act 2011 (Cth) ('WHS Act');
  - (b) in compliance with the WHS Legislation, to the full extent that the WHS Legislation applies to the Contractor; and
  - (c) in accordance with equivalent local work health and safety legislation.
- 20.2 The Contractor agrees, when using DFAT's premises or facilities, to comply with all reasonable directions and procedures relating to work health and safety in effect at those premises or in regard to those facilities, as notified by DFAT or as might be inferred from the use to which the premises or facilities are being put.
- 20.3 Without limiting any other provision of this Contract, the Contractor agrees to, on request, give all reasonable assistance to DFAT, by way of provision of information and documents, to assist DFAT and its officers as defined in the WHS Act to comply with the duties imposed on them under the WHS Act.
- 20.4 The Contractor acknowledges that DFAT may direct it to take specified measures in connection with the Contractor's work under this Contract that DFAT considers reasonably necessary to deal with an event or circumstance that has or is likely to have, an adverse effect on the health or safety of persons. The Contractor must comply with the direction at its own cost.

#### INSURANCE

- 21.1 The Contractor must procure and maintain:
  - (a) workers compensation insurance or registration as required by law;
  - (b) the insurances specified in the Details Schedule (if any); and

General Conditions of Contract

CONTRACT NO: 4600008330

(c) such other insurances and on such terms and conditions as a prudent contractor, providing services similar to the Services, would procure and maintain.

#### 22. INDEMNITY

- 22.1 The Contractor indemnifies DFAT, its officers, employees and agents against any liability, loss, damage, cost (including the cost of any settlement and legal costs and expenses on a legal counsel and own client basis), compensation or expense arising out of or in any way in connection with:
  - a default or any unlawful, wilful or negligent act or omission on the part of the Contractor or its Personnel; or
  - (b) any action, claim, dispute, suit or proceeding brought by any third party in respect of any infringement or alleged infringement of that third party's Intellectual Property or moral rights in connection with the Services.
- The Contractor's liability to indemnify DFAT under clause 21.1(a) is reduced to the extent that any wilful, unlawful, or negligent act or omission of DFAT, its officers, employees or agents contributed to the liability, loss, damage, cost, compensation or expense.

#### 23. PRIVACY

- 23.1 The Contractor must:
  - if it obtains Personal Information in the course of performing the Contract, use or disclose that Personal Information only for the purposes of the Contract subject to any applicable exceptions in the *Privacy Act 1988* (Cth) (Privacy Act);
  - (b) to the extent that different privacy laws apply to DFAT and the Contract, and without limiting clause 22.1(a), conform with the Privacy Act obligations applicable to DFAT, as if they were binding upon the Contractor; and
  - (c) as a contracted service provider, not do any act or engage in any practice which, if done or engaged in by DFAT, would be a breach of the Australian Privacy Principles.
- 23.2 The Contractor must notify DFAT as soon as reasonably practicable if:
  - it becomes aware of a breach or possible breach of any of the obligations contained, or referred to, in this clause 22, whether by the Contractor, subcontractor or any other person to whom the Personal Information has been disclosed for the purposes of the Contract; or
  - (b) in relation to Personal Information obtained in the course of performing the Contract:
    - it becomes aware that a disclosure of such Personal Information may be required by law; or
    - (ii) it is approached by the Privacy Commissioner.
- 23.3 The Contractor must:
  - (a) investigate any breach or possible breach of its obligations in relation to Personal Information under this Contract and report the substance and outcome of that investigation to DFAT within 14 calendar days of becoming aware of the breach or possible breach; or
  - (b) assist DFAT with its own investigation into the breach or possible breach of any of the Contractor's obligations in relation to Personal Information under this Contract, acknowledging DFAT's obligations under the Privacy Act.
- The Contractor must ensure that its Personnel who deal with Personal Information for the purposes of the Contract are aware of, and comply with, this clause 22.
- 23.5 The Contractor must ensure that any subcontract entered into for the purposes of fulfilling its obligations under the Contract, contains provisions to ensure that the subcontractor complies with this clause 22

# 24. CONFIDENTIALITY

General Conditions of Contract CONTRACT NO: 4600008330 6

- The Contractor must not disclose any DFAT Confidential Information to any third party without the prior written consent of DFAT. The Contractor will not be in breach of this clause in circumstances where it is required by law to disclose any DFAT Confidential Information. The parties acknowledge and agree that the terms of this Contract are not confidential, except for any clause or information identified by a party in the Details Schedule as being confidential to that party.
- 24.2 If required by DFAT, the Contractor must ensure that its Personnel (including subcontractor personnel) engaged in the performance of the Services under this Contract give a written undertaking in a form required by DFAT prior to the disclosure of DFAT Confidential Information.

#### 25. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- 25.1 The Contractor warrants that, to the best of its knowledge after making diligent enquiries at the Effective Date, no conflict of interest exists or is likely to arise in the performance of its obligations under the Contract by itself or by any of its Personnel.
- The Contractor must notify DFAT in writing promptly if such a conflict of interest arises, or appears likely to arise.
- Within seven (7) days after giving notice under clause 24.2, the Contractor must notify DFAT in writing of the steps it will take to resolve the issue. If DFAT considers those steps are inadequate, it may direct the Contractor to resolve the issue in a manner proposed by DFAT. If the Contractor fails to notify DFAT in accordance with clause 24.2 or this clause 24.3 or is unable or unwilling to resolve the issue in the required manner, DFAT may terminate the Contract in accordance with clause 16 (Termination for Breach).

#### 26. NOTICES

- 26.1 A party giving notice under this Contract must do so in writing that is:
  - (a) directed to the party's address specified in the Details Schedule and marked for the attention of the other party's representative; and
  - (b) hand delivered, sent by pre-paid post or facsimile to that address or to the representative's email address.
- 26.2 A notice given in accordance with clause 25.1 is received:
  - (a) if hand delivered, on delivery;
  - (b) if sent by pre-paid post on the fifth day after the date of posting;
  - (c) if sent by email, when the email enters the addressee's information system, unless the sender's information system receives a message within one (1) business day that the email has not been delivered to the addressee,
  - (d) but, if the receipt, transmission or entry into the information system is not on a business day or is after 5.00 pm (recipients local time) on a business day, the notice is taken to be received at 9.00 am (recipient's local time) on the next business day.

#### 27. ASSIGNMENT

27.1 The Contractor must not assign any of its rights under the Contract without the prior written consent of DFAT.

# 28. SUBCONTRACTING

28.1 The Contractor must not subcontract the whole or part of its obligations under the Contract without the prior written consent of DFAT. Subcontracting the whole or part of the Contractor's obligations under the Contract will not relieve the Contractor from any of its obligations under the Contract. Upon request the Contractor must make available to DFAT the details of all subcontractors engaged to provide the Services under the Contract. The Contractor acknowledges that DFAT may be required to disclose such information.

# 29. APPROVALS AND COMPLIANCE

29.1 The Contractor must obtain and maintain in full force any necessary export licences, licences,

General Conditions of Contract CONTRACT NO: 4600008330 7

accreditations, permits, registrations, regulatory approvals or other documented authority (however described) required by law and necessary for the provision of the Services. The Contractor must comply with and ensure its Personnel comply with the laws from time to time in force in the jurisdictions in which any part of the Contract is to be carried out and all DFAT policies relevant or applicable to the Contract.

#### DFAT ACCESS

The Contractor must permit DFAT and its nominees timely and sufficient access to its premises, records or accounts relevant to the Contract to conduct audits under the *Auditor-General Act 1997*. DFAT and its nominees may copy any records or accounts relevant to the Contract and retain or use these records and accounts for this purpose.

#### 31. CHILD PROTECTION POLICY

- 31.1 The Contractor must comply with the DFAT Child Protection Policy accessible on the DFAT website: <a href="http://www.dfat.gov.au/childprotection">http://www.dfat.gov.au/childprotection</a>. DFATmay audit the Contractor's compliance with the Child Protection Policy. The Contractor must participate cooperatively in any reviews conducted by DFAT.
- 31.2 If the Child Protection Officer finds that the Contractor has failed to comply with the Child Protection Policy, the Contractor must promptly, and at the cost of the Contractor, take such actions as are required to ensure compliance with the compliance standards specified in the Child Protection Policy.

# 32. PREVENTING SEXUAL EXPLOITATION, ABUSE AND HARASSMENT (PSEAH)

- The Contractor must comply, and must ensure that its Personnel comply, with DFAT's Preventing Sexual Exploitation, Abuse and Harassment Policy, accessible at http://www.dfat.gov.au/pseah.
- 32.2 DFAT may conduct a review of the Contractor's compliance with DFAT's Preventing Sexual Exploitation, Abuse and Harassment Policy referred to in clause 31.1. DFAT will give reasonable notice (at least 14 calendar days) to the Contractor and the Contractor must participate co-operatively in any such review.
- 32.3 The Contractor must report to <a href="mailto:seahreports@dfat.gov.au">seahreports@dfat.gov.au</a> any suspected or alleged case of sexual exploitation, abuse and harassment that relates to the Services within 48 hours of becoming aware of the case. The Contractor must report to DFAT any alleged incidents of non-compliance with DFATs Preventing Sexual Exploitation, Abuse and Harassment Policy within five (5) business days.
- 32.4 In reporting to DFAT as required pursuant to clause 31.1, the Contractormust comply with the *Privacy Act 1988* (Cth) and the privacy provisions in the DFAT PSEAH Incident Notification Form, available on DFAT's website.

# 33. COUNTER-TERRORISM AND SANCTIONS

- 33.1 The Contractor must ensure that:
  - (a) individuals, persons, entities or organisations involved in activities under the Contract, including it and its Personnel, do not engage in any Prohibited Dealings; and
  - (b) none of the funds provided under this Contract (whether through a subcontract or not) are used in any way to directly or indirectly provide support, resources or assets to individuals, persons, entities or organisations involved in any Prohibited Dealings.
- 33.2 The Contractor must immediately inform DFAT if it:
  - (a) becomes aware of any link whatsoever between it or its Personnel and any individual, person, entity or organisation involved in Prohibited Dealings;
  - (b) becomes aware that it, any of its Personnel or any individual, person, entity or organisation involved in implementing the Contract is involved in Prohibited Dealings;
  - (c) discovers that any or all of the funds provided under the Contract (whether through a subcontract or not) have been used in any way to directly or indirectly provide support, resources or assets to an individual, person, entity or organisation involved in Prohibited

# Dealings;

- (d) becomes aware that it or any of its Personnel have been suspended from tendering for World Bank grants by the World Bank or from tendering by a donor of development funding other than the World Bank; or
- (e) becomes aware that it or any of its Personnel are the subject of an investigation (whether formal or informal) by the World Bank or another donor of development funding.
- Any breach of this clause 32 will entitle DFAT to issue a notice under clause 16 (Termination for Breach) to terminate the Contract immediately.

#### 34. ANTI-CORRUPTION

34.1 The Contractor warrants that neither it nor its Personnel will make or cause to be made, receive or seek to receive any offer, gift or payment or benefit of any kind, which could be construed as an illegal or corrupt act, either directly or indirectly to any Party in relation to the execution of this Contract. Any breach of this clause 33 will entitle DFAT to issue a notice under clause 16 (Termination for Breach) to terminate this Contract immediately.

#### 35. FRAUD

- 35.1 This clause applies to any Fraud which relates to the Services or this Contract.
- 35.2 The Contractor must not, and must ensure that its Personnel do not, engage in any fraudulent activity. The Contractor is responsible for preventing and detecting Fraud.
- 35.3 If the Contractor becomes aware of a Fraud, it must report the matter to DFAT in writing within five (5) business days. The Contractor must investigate the Fraud at the Contractor's cost and in accordance with any directions or standards required by DFAT.
- 35.4 After the investigation is finished, if a suspected offender has been identified, the Contractor must promptly report the Fraud to the local police and any other appropriate law enforcement agency in the country where the incident occurred, unless the Director of DFAT's Fraud Section agrees otherwise in writing.
- 35.5 If the investigation finds the Contractor or its Personnel have engaged in fraudulent activity, the Contractor must:
  - (a) if DFAT funds have been misappropriated, pay to DFAT the full value of the DFAT funds that have been misappropriated:
  - (b) if DFAT-funded property has been misappropriated, either return the property to DFAT or, if the property cannot be recovered or has been damaged so that it is no longer usable, replace the property with property of equal quality; and
  - (c) keep DFAT informed, in writing, on a monthly basis, of the progress of the recovery action.
- 35.6 If the investigation finds that a person other than the Contractor or its Personnel has engaged in fraudulent activity, the Contractor must, at the Contractor's cost:
  - (a) take all reasonable action to recover any DFAT funds or DFAT-funded property acquired or distributed through fraudulent activity; and
  - (b) keep DFAT informed, in writing, on a monthly basis, of the progress of the recovery action.

#### 35. DISPUTE

- The parties will try to settle any disputes that arise under this Contract by direct negotiation at the working level.
- 35.2 For any dispute that cannot be resolved at the working level, the party claiming that there is a dispute will give the other party a notice setting out the details of the dispute. Within five (5) business days, each party will nominate a senior representative, not having prior direct involvement in the dispute. The senior representatives will try to settle the dispute by direct negotiation.

- 35.3 If the senior representatives cannot resolve the dispute within a further 10 business days, either party may commence legal proceedings.
- 35.4 Each part will bear its own costs for dispute resolution.
- The procedure for dispute resolution does not apply to action relating to termination or to legal proceedings for urgent interlocutory relief.

#### 36. Publicity

The Contractor may not make media or other announcements or releases relating to this Contract without DFAT's prior written approval except to the extent that the announcement or release is required to be made by law.

# 37. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

37.1 The Contract represents the parties' entire agreement in relation to the subject matter and supersedes all submitted offers and prior representations, communications, agreements, statements and understandings, whether oral or in writing.

#### 38. AMENDMENT

38.1 Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and signed by the parties.

#### 39. SEVERABILITY

39.1 A provision or part of a provision of this Contract that is void, illegal or unenforceable may be severed from this agreement and the remaining provisions or parts of the provision of this agreement continue in force.

#### 40. SURVIVAL

40.1 Any provision of the Contract which expressly or by implication from its nature is intended to survive the termination or expiration of the Contract and any rights arising on termination or expiration shall survive.

# 41. GOVERNING LAW

41.1 The laws of the jurisdiction specified in the Details Schedule apply to the Contract.

#### 42. DEFINITIONS

In the Contract, unless the contrary intention appears, words, abbreviations and acronyms have the meaning given to them in the Details Schedule or this clause 42:

'Australian Privacy Principles' has the same meaning as in the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth).

'Consolidated List' means the list of all persons and entities who are subject to targeted financial sanctions or travel bans under Australian sanctions laws which is maintained by DFAT accessible at: <a href="https://dfat.gov.au/international-relations/security/sanctions/Pages/consolidated-list.aspx">https://dfat.gov.au/international-relations/security/sanctions/Pages/consolidated-list.aspx</a>.

'Contract' has the meaning given in clause 3.

'Contractor' means the entity specified in the Details Schedule.

'Criminal Code Act List' means the list of organisations that are specified as a "terrorist organisation" by regulations made under the *Criminal Code Act 1995* (Cth) (this list is currently available at <a href="https://www.nationalsecurity.gov.au/Listedterroristorganisations/Pages/default.aspx">https://www.nationalsecurity.gov.au/Listedterroristorganisations/Pages/default.aspx</a>).

'DFAT' means the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade.

'DFAT Confidential Information' means any information provided by DFAT to the Contractor or which comes into the possession of the Contractor in connection with the Services which DFAT has identified as confidential or the Contractor ought reasonably to know is confidential.

'DFAT Items' means any information (including DFAT Confidential Information), property or facilities made available by DFAT to the Contractor for the purpose of the Services.

**'Expiry Date'** means the date specified in Item 2 of the Details Schedule as the expiration date of this Contract. .

'Fraud' means dishonestly obtaining a benefit or causing a loss by deception or other means and includes alleged, attempted, suspected or detected fraud.

'Indigenous Cultural and Intellectual Property' or 'ICIP' means the cultural rights of Australian Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders to their heritage. Heritage comprises all objects, sites, languages and knowledge, the nature or use of which has been transmitted or continues to be transmitted from generation to generation, and which is regarded as pertaining to a particular Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander group or its territory. This heritage is a living one and includes objects, knowledge and works which may be created in the future based on that heritage. Heritage includes: a. literary, performing and artistic works (including songs, music, dances, stories, ceremonies, symbols, languages and designs); b. scientific, agricultural, technical and ecological knowledge (including cultigens, medicines and the phenotypes of flora and fauna); c. all items of movable cultural property; d. human remains and tissues; e. immovable cultural property (including sacred and historically significant sites and burial grounds); f. documentation of Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander peoples' heritage in archives, film, photographs, videotape or audiotape and all forms of media;

'Intellectual Property Rights' or 'IP' means all copyright and all rights in relation to inventions (including patent rights), registered and unregistered trademarks (including service marks), registered and unregistered designs, and circuit layouts, and any other rights resulting from intellectual activity in the industrial, scientific, literary and artistic fields recognised in domestic law anywhere in the world.

'Personnel' means the employees, officers, subcontractors or agents of a party to this Contract.

'Personal Information' has the same meaning as in the Privacy Act 1988 (Cth).

'Privacy Commissioner' has the same meaning as in the Australian Information Commissioner Act 2010 (Cth)

#### 'Prohibited Dealings' means:

- (a) being directly or indirectly engaged in, preparing for, planning for, assisting in or fostering the doing of a terrorist act;
- (b) being listed on the Criminal Code Act List;
- (c) being listed on the Consolidated List;
- (d) being listed on the World Bank List, or subject of an investigation or temporary suspension which may lead to becoming so listed;
- (e) acting on behalf of, or at the direction of, individuals, persons, entities or organisations:
  - (i). directly or indirectly engaged in, preparing for, planning for, assisting in or fostering the doing of a terrorist act; or
  - (ii). listed on any of the lists mentioned in (b) to (d) inclusive; and/or
- (f) being owned or controlled by individuals, persons, entities or organisations:
  - (i). directly or indirectly engaged in, preparing for, planning for, assisting in or fostering the doing of a terrorist act;
  - (ii). listed on any of the lists mentioned in (b) to (d) inclusive.

'Reimbursable Expenses' means any consumables used in the delivery of the Services or travel expenses that have been pre-approved in writing by DFAT.

'Services' means the services as detailed in the Details Schedule...

'WHS Legislation' means:

- (a) the Work Health and Safety Act 2011 (Cth) and the Work Health and Safety Regulations 2011 (Cth); and
- (b) any corresponding WHS law as defined in section 4 of the *Work Health and Safety Act* 2011 (Cth).

'World Bank List' means the list of organisations maintained by the World Bank in its "Listing of Ineligible Firms" or "Listings of Firms, Letters of Reprimand" posted at: <a href="http://www.worldbank.org/en/projects-operations/procurement/debarred-firms">http://www.worldbank.org/en/projects-operations/procurement/debarred-firms</a>

# SIGNED AS A CONTRACT

# SIGNED for and on behalf of the COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA

represented by the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade (ABN 47 065 634 525) acting through the Australian Embassy, Washington by its authorised representative:

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

Lisa Usback
Minister-Counsellor (Management)
& Consul-General
Embassy of Australia
Washington DC

(print name and position)

14-6-2022 (date)

In the presence of:

representative)

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

(signature of witness)

(signature of authorised

(print name of witness)

14.6.22 (date)

SIGNED for and on behalf of the CONTRACTOR by its authorised representative:

s47F(1)

Kade McDonald, CEO

14.06.2022

(signature of authorised

representative)

(print name)

(date)

(date)

s 47F(1)

(signature of witness)

(print name of witness)

14.06.2022

General Conditions of Contract for the Supply of Services outside Australia (v0.1 May 2019)

#### ATTACHMENT 1 - SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

#### 1. THE SERVICES

The successful Respondent will be required to:

#### 1.1 Artwork recommendations

- (a) Form and coordinate a selection committee to collectively evaluate and recommend artwork, based on the provided project briefs.
  - a. The selection committee will include two (2) Embassy representatives, one (1) representative from Bates Smart, one (1) representative from the respondent, two (2) industry experts.
  - b. The selection committee for all Indigenous art will also include one (1) Indigenous art advisor and one (1) Indigenous Elder.
  - c. The composition of the selection committee is subject to post approval.
- (b) Provide recommendations for an Indigenous art advisor to Embassy representatives for selection, and engage the selected advisor, to provide advice regarding Indigenous works, processes and sensitivities.
- (c) Provide a shortlist of artists and artworks, based on the project briefs provided by the Embassy and recommendations from the selection committee deliberations for DFAT and Embassy consideration.

# 1.2 Purchase

- (a) Subject to approval, successful Respondent undertake procurement of the selected artworks, including the production, payment, delivery and installation of all artworks, directly with the artists.
- (b) Manage the design development and contracting with artists and/or creators including full budget outline, engineering designs and documentation, and detailed production, fabrication, delivery and installation schedules with associated fee milestones.

#### 1.3 Production and delivery

- (a) The Respondent will oversee the production, payment, delivery and installation of the artworks, including any required service providers and subcontractors.
- (b) The artworks are to be fully executed and installed on site in the new Australian Embassy in Washington DC, USA within set budget and time schedules. Each artwork is to be delivered with an accompanying report and photographic documentation, final maintenance guidance, artist contact details and full licence and copyright, ensuring all legal mechanisms are in place for each artwork.
- (c) Ensure coordination with the new Embassy Build Project Team and General Construction Contractor for the delivery and installation of the artworks.

The final decision making in selection of all artworks, personnel and other related decision making must be undertaken by Embassy representatives.

#### 2. EXPERIENCE REQUIREMENTS

The successful Respondent should have:

- (a) Experience delivering full-service, large scale public art and sculptures, including experience working with Australian government institutions and Indigenous artists;
- (b) Expertise and network of Australia artists, galleries, art institutions and collectives;
- (c) Experience delivering public sculpture projects internationally, working with foreign contractors and suppliers is advantageous;
- (d) Ability to facilitate and deliver multiple projects to budget and schedule, within tight timeframes;
   and
- (e) Ability to weigh economic options of the different project components being produced in Australia or in the US.

#### 3. ARTWORK REQUIREMENTS

The successful Respondent's obligations include project scoping for commissioning and selection of five (5) artworks: one (1) permanent Indigenous outdoor sculpture, one (1) smaller temporary loaned outdoor sculpture and three (3) internal artworks.

Project briefs for the five (5) artworks are laid out in the Embassy's preferred artwork plans, to a total maximum cost of \$810,000 inclusive of the Respondents costs to provide the required services. Budgets are indicative and subject to final confirmation by the Embassy.

- (a) Outdoor Indigenous Sculpture. A large, permanent, original, high quality, outdoor Indigenous monument/sculpture (\$500,000 to \$600,000)
- (b) Outdoor Loaned Sculpture. A smaller temporary outdoor sculpture with an initial loan period of three years with potential to extend up to an additional two years (three-to-five-year loan period) (\$80,000 to \$100,000)
- (c) Indigenous/Enviro themed suspended/mounted multi-piece (at least two) work. A permanent indoor installation (Atrium) (\$85,000 to \$115,000)
- (d) Contemporary Indigenous Wall Artwork. A permanent indoor (staff Hub) installation (\$8,000 to \$11,000)
- (e) Contemporary Wall Hanging (e.g. tapestry). A large, indoor installation (staff Hub), to be procured from the Australian Tapestry Workshop or an equivalent suitable Australian organisation (\$30,000 to \$50,000)

#### ATTACHMENT 2 - PRICING SCHEDULE

# 1. BASIS OF PAYMENT

- 1.1 Subject to clause 8 (Price Basis) of the General Conditions of Contract, the Contract Price is a maximum of AUD 808,767.
- 1.2 Subject to clause 9 (Payment) of the General Conditions of Contract, the contract price and is payable by DFAT in the following instalments:
  - a) Commencement of project scoping for the five (5) artworks [50% of total contract value];
  - b) Production Milestones:
    - 1. Finalisation of concept design and production plans for creation of new artworks [10% of total contract value]
    - 2. Production commencement [10% of total contract value]
    - 3. Proof of production completion (minus required on-site work or assembly as delivery) [10% of total contract value]
  - c) Procurement of selected existing artworks (preference for one invoice) [10% of total contract value]
  - d) Delivery and installation of all artworks and associated documentation [10% of total contract value]
- 1.3 The Contractor may submit a claim for payment of each instalment following completion of the relevant milestone.

# 2. REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

2.1 No expenses shall be reimbursable under the Contract.



# DEED OF AMENDMENT

Dated: 22 September 2023

Commonwealth of Australia represented by the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade ('DFAT') ABN 47 065 634 525

The Trustee for Agency Projects Trust

(ABN 16 481 427 134) ('Contractor')

FOR THE PROVISION OF Artworks for the new Australian Embassy Project in Washington DC, USA

DEAT AGREEMENT NUMBER: 4600008330

CONTRACT made 14 day of June 2022

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 47F(1)

DEAT initial:

Contractor initial

THIS DEED OF AMENDMENT is made this 22 day of September 2023

#### BETWEEN:

The COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA, represented by the DEPARTMENT OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS AND TRADE, ABN 47 065 634 525 ("the Commonwealth")

# AND

The Trustee for Agency Projects Trust, ABN 16 481 427 134 Collingwood Yards, Unit 102/35 Johnston Street, Collingwood, Victoria, Australia, ("the Contractor") (respectively 'the Parties').

#### RECITALS:

- On 14 June 2022 the Commonwealth and the Contractor entered into Contract 4600008330 for the provision of the Goods and/or Services described in the Contract.
- B. The Parties have now agreed to amend the Contract Term and the Contract Price for the Goods and/or Services provided by the Contractor as set out in this Deed of Amendment ('Deed').

# OPERATIVE PROVISIONS:

- In this Deed, unless the contrary intention appears, a reference to "the Contract" is to the Contract referred to in Recital A above.
- 2. The Contract is amended as set out below:

#### Amendment to Contract Term

The end date of the Contract is amended as follows:

Current Contract End Date:	31 August 2023
New Contract End Date:	31 December 2023

#### Reason for change:

The reason for the change to the end date of the Contract is because of a revised delivery date.

# Amendment to amount of Contract Price

The Contract Price - the Contract Price is amended as follows:

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 47F(1)

DEAT Initial:

Contractor initial

	Amount (GST exclusive)	GST	Total Contract Price (GST Inclusive)
Current Contract Price (AUD)	\$808,767	\$0.00	\$808,767
New Contract Price (AUD)	\$872,703	\$0.00	\$872,703

# Reason for change:

The reason for the change to the Contract Price is increased freight, installation and associated costs.

- The amendment(s) set out in this Deed take effect when this Deed is signed by the parties, or
  if signed on separate days, the date of last signature.
- Each party confirms that, except as provided for in this Deed, no other amendments are made to Contract 4600008330.
- Each party must bear its own costs of the preparation, negotiation, execution and performance of this deed.
- 4. This Deed is governed by the same law that governs the Contract 4600008330.

**EXECUTED AS A DEED** by the Commonwealth, by an authorised officer, and by the Contractor by its authorised officer(s).

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED for and on behalf of the COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA represented by the Department

of Foreign Affairs and Trade by:

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

Signature of PGPA Delegate

Name of Delegaribassy of Australia
(Print)

Lisa Usback
Minister-Counsellor (Management)

Consul-General

Washington DC

26 September 202

in the presence of:

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

Signature of witness

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

Name of witness (Print)

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 47F(1)

DEAT initial: \_

Contractor initial

EXECUTED by The Trustee for Agency Projects Trust (ABN 16 481 427 134:

s	47	7F	(1	)	

Signature of Authorised Representative

KADE MUJONAY

Name (Print)

25/09/2023 Date

s	4	7	F	(1	)

Signature of Willness / s 47F(1)

Name of Witness (Print)

# AMENDMENT SUMMARY

The Contract has been amended in accordance with the Standard Conditions clause headed Contract Amendment of the Contract/Standing Offer on the following dates relating to:

Amendment Number	Date	Brief Summary of Amendment	Increase/Decreas e in Contract Price	New Contract Price
1	22.09.23	Contract end date changed to 31 December 023	AUD 63,936	AUD 872,703
		Contract price increased by AUD 63,936 to AUD 872,703		

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 47F(1)

DEAT initial:

Contractor Initia

**Cust PO:** 



New perspectives for people, art and Country.

The Trustee for Agency Projects Trust

A.B.N. 16 481 427 134

Tax Invoice

Collingwood Yards Unit 102 / 35 Johnston Street, Collingwood VIC 3066

Bill To: Invoice No: \$ 47G(1)(a)

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA represented by the
Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade at the Embassy of

Australia

DESCRIPTION		INC AMOUNT
Item #5 - Delivery and installation of all artworks and associated documentation.		\$80,876.70
Item #6 - Contract amendment for increased freight, installation and associated costs.		\$63,936.00
s 47G(1)(a), s 47G(1)(b)	GST:	\$0.00
	Total Inc GST:	\$144,812.70
	Amount Applied:	\$0.00
Please use invoice number as payment reference	Balance Due:	\$144,812.70

Date: 9/06/2022

Cust PO: 4600008330



New perspectives for people, art and Country.

The Trustee for Agency Projects Trust

A.B.N. 16 481 427 134

Tax Invoice

**Collingwood Yards** Unit 102 / 35 Johnston Street, Collingwood VIC 3066

Bill To: Invoice No: s 47G(1)(a)

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA represented by the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade at the Embassy of

DESCRIPTION		TOTAL AMOUNT
Provision of Artworks for the new Australian Embassy Project in Washington DC, USA for the commencement of project scoping; including the commissioning and selection of five (5) artworks: one (1) permanent Indigenous outdoor sculpture, one (1) smaller temporary loaned outdoor sculpture and three (3) internal artwork. (50% of contract value)		\$404,383.50
s 47G(1)(a), s 47G(1)(b)	GST:	\$0.00
	Total Inc GST:	\$404,383.50
	Amount Applied:	\$0.00
Please use invoice number as payment reference	Balance Due:	\$404,383.50

Date: 9/02/2023



New perspectives for people, art and Country.

The Trustee for Agency Projects Trust

A.B.N. 16 481 427 134

Tax Invoice

**Collingwood Yards** Unit 102 / 35 Johnston Street, Collingwood VIC 3066

Bill To: Invoice No: s 47G(1)(a)

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA represented by the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade at the Embassy of Cust PO: 4600008330

DESCRIPTION		TOTAL AMOUNT
Finalisation of concept design and production plans for creation of new artworks		\$80,876.70
Production commencement		\$80,876.70
47G(1)(a), s 47G(1)(b)		
	GST:	\$0.00
	GS1.	\$0.00

s 47G(1)(a), s 47G(1)(b)		
	GST:	\$0.00
	Total Inc GST:	\$161,753.40
	Amount Applied:	\$0.00
Please use invoice number as payment reference	Balance Due:	\$161,753.40

Date: 7/09/2023

Cust PO: 4600008330



New perspectives for people, art and Country.

The Trustee for Agency Projects Trust

A.B.N. 16 481 427 134

Tax Invoice

Collingwood Yards Unit 102 / 35 Johnston Street, Collingwood VIC 3066

Bill To: Invoice No: \$ 47G(1)(a)

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA represented by the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade at the Embassy of

Australia

DESCRIPTION		INC AMOUNT
Item #4 - Proof of production completion (minus required on-site work or assembly as delivery)		\$80,876.70
Item #5 - Procurement of selected existing artworks		\$80,876.70
47G(1)(a), s 47G(1)(b)		

s 47G(1)(a), s 47G(1)(b)		
	GST:	\$0.00
	Total Inc GST:	\$161,753.40
	Amount Applied:	\$0.00
Please use invoice number as payment reference	Balance Due:	\$161,753.40

# UAP

# **Tax Invoice**

ABN: 48 123 113 468

# **UAP Australia Pty Ltd**

41 Holland Street, Northgate QLD 4013 Phone: +61 7 3630 6300 Fax: +61 7 3630 6346 receivable@uapcompany.com

s 47G(1)(a)

Invoice No

**Invoice Date** 15/06/2023

**Purchase Order** 

SOLD TO:

Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade R.G. Casey Building Barton ACT 0221 AUSTRALIA

Qty	Description		Amount AUD
1	P2982 Aus Embassy Janet Fieldhouse DFAT Variation Air Freight - 100%		6,302.95
		Sub Total AUD	6,302.95
		GST AUD	630.30
		Total	AUD 6,933.25

This is a payment claim made under the Building and Construction Industry Security of Payment Act 2009 (ACT).

s 47G(1)(a), s 47G(1)(b)

# **PAYMENT TERMS**

Deposit required to commence project
Progress payments strictly 14 days
All progress claims must be paid before delivery or installation

Title of goods described in this invoice will not pass to the purchaser until full payment has been received by UAP

uapcompany.com Page 29 of 29